
 

 

 

 

JOINT PLANNING COMMISSION 
AGENDA 

April 25, 2023 
Regular Meeting - 7:00 PM 

 

1) CALL TO ORDER  
2) ROLL CALL  
3) APPROVAL OF AGENDA - Items can be added or deleted from the Agenda by Board action.  
 A. Approval of April 25, 2023 JPC Agenda  
4) APPROVAL OF MINUTES  
 A. Minutes of October 18, 2022 JPC Meeting 
5) PUBLIC COMMENT ON AGENDA ITEMS Persons addressing the board are required to give their name and 

address for the record when called upon by the Chair. Members of the public shall be limited to speaking for a maximum of five (5) 
minutes. Comments should address AGENDA ITEM topics. Public Hearing items should be addressed during the PUBLIC HEARING 
portion of the meeting agenda. Non-Agenda items should be addressed during the PUBLIC COMMENT-NON-AGENDA ITEMS portion 
of the meeting agenda. 

6) PUBLIC HEARINGS & SUBSEQUENT BOARD ACTION Persons addressing the board are required to 
give their name and address for the record when called upon by the Chair. Members of the public shall be limited to speaking for a 
maximum of five (5) minutes. 

 A. RZ #23-01 13700 West Michigan Avenue Rezoning 
7) OLD BUSINESS  
8) REPORTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS/NEW BUSINESS  
9) PUBLIC COMMENT ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS Persons addressing the board are required to give their name 

and address for the record when called upon by the Chair. Members of the public shall be limited to speaking for a maximum of five 
(5) minutes. Comments should address NON-AGENDA ITEM topics. Public Hearing items should be addressed during the PUBLIC 
HEARING portion of the meeting agenda. Agenda items should be addressed during the PUBLIC COMMENT-AGENDA ITEMS 
portion of the meeting agenda. 

10) BOARD REPORTS  
11) ADJOURNMENT  

 

Page 1 of 33



Unofficial 

City of Marshall and Marshall Township  

Joint Planning Commission Minutes 

October 18, 2022  

In a regular session, Tuesday, October 18, 2022 at 7:00 p.m. in the Council Chambers at 
Marshall City Hall, 323 W Michigan Ave, the City of Marshall and Marshall Township 
Joint Planning Commission was called to order by Chair Banfield. 

ROLL CALL 

Members Present:  Banfield, Burke-Smith, Gresley, Hoffman, Lyng, and Reed 

Members Absent:  None 

Staff Present:  Eric Zuzga, City of Marshall Director of Community Services 
   Paul Anderson, Marshall Township Zoning Administrator 

 
AGENDA 

MOTION by Lyng, supported by Reed to approve the agenda as presented. On a voice 
vote; MOTION CARRIED. 

MINUTES 

MOTIONS by Reed, supported by Lyng, to accept the minutes from the Tuesday, 
September 13, 2022 as submitted. On a voice vote; MOTION CARRIED. 

PUBLIC COMMENTS ON AGENDA ITEMS 

None 

PUBLIC HEARINGS  

1. Rezoning Application RZ 22.04 for Parcel #13-16-260-003-00, currently 902 South 
Kalamazoo Avenue 

 
 Public hearing opened at 7:03 PM.  Zuzga presented the rezoning application for 902 

South Kalamazoo/550 West Hughes.  The request is due to an approved 425 
agreement with the Township.  The owners are requesting a rezoning to Multifamily 
Residential from the current Township zoning. 

  
 Paul Anderson indicated that the Township had just updated their Master Plan and 

Future Land Use map to allow this property to be multifamily.  They anticipated a 
development coming to this parcel and were encouraging development around the 
city.  

  

Page 2 of 33



Unofficial 

Ryan Schmidt and Joe Elias are the potential developers of the property.  They 
indicated that Marshall was a very attractive market and one that they had studied in 
depth before offering to purchase this property.  They feel that Marshall has a need 
for multifamily housing, especially with the age of its current housing stock.   

  
 Greg Potter, 906 S Kalamazoo Street, indicated that he is supportive of housing 

projects in general and that Marshall has a need.  He posed several questions (# of 
units, impact to water/sewer, etc.) to City staff and the developer on items that will be 
addressed under site plan review.  He strongly urged the developers to respect the 
riverfront and for all parties to review the environmental impact of any and all 
development, especially in regards to the river and Rice Creek. 

 
 Schmidt and Elias indicated that they intend to developer the property with respect to 

the riverfront and did not plan to cut trees or open up the riverfront.  They want to 
keep it natural and add trail down to the river. 

 
 Public hearing closed at 7:26 PM. 
 
2. Rezoning Application RZ 22.05 for Parcel #13-16-273-024-01, 15998 West Michigan 

Avenue 
 
 Public hearing opened at 7:26. Zuzga presented the application for rezoning at 15998 

West Michigan.  The rezoning was necessary due to an approved 425 agreement with 
Marshall Township. 

 
 With no comments, the public hearing closed at 7:27. 
 
NEW BUSINESS  

1. Discuss and give recommendation on Rezoning Application RZ 22.04 for Parcel 
#13-16-260-003-00, currently 902 South Kalamazoo Avenue, to rezone from Township 
Zoning Agricultural (AR) to City Zoning of Multi-Family Residential (MFRD) 
 
Zuzga presented the staff report (attached) which summarized the proposed rezoning 
and its alignment with the standards for approval in the zoning ordinance.  The 
Commission reviewed this information and determined that the proposed rezoning was 
consisted with the standards for approval in the zoning ordinance. 
 
MOTION by Burke Smith, supported by Hoffman to recommend approval of Zoning 
Amendment request #JPCRZ22.05 to rezone property coming in to the City on a 425 
Land Transfer at 550 W Hughes to Multifamily Residential (MFRD). On a voice vote; 
MOTION CARRIED 5-1. 

Page 3 of 33



Unofficial 

 
2. Discuss and give recommendation on Rezoning Application RZ 22.05 for Parcel 
#13-16-273-024-01, 15998 West Michigan Avenue, to rezone from Township Zoning 
Highway Service (HS) to City Zoning Regional Commercial (B-4) 
 
Zuzga presented the staff report (attached) which summarized the proposed rezoning 
and its alignment with the standards for approval in the zoning ordinance.  The proposed 
rezoning was consistent with the Master Plan and is currently surrounded by properties 
in the B-4 District.  
 
MOTION by Burke Smith, supported by Hoffman to recommend approval of Zoning 
Amendment request #JPCRZ22.05 to rezone property coming in to the City on a 425 
Land Transfer at 15998 West Michigan Avenue to Regional Commercial (B-4). On a 
voice vote; MOTION CARRIED 6-0. 

PUBLIC COMMENT ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS 

None 

REPORTS 

None 

ADJOURN 

The Joint Planning Commission adjourned at 7:51 p.m. 

Submitted by, 

Eric Zuzga, Director of Community Services 

Page 4 of 33



 
ITEM #7A  

 
TO:   Joint Planning Commission Members 
FROM: Eric Zuzga, Director of Community Services 
DATE: April 25, 2023 
SUBJECT: Rezoning Request- RZ #23-01 
  13700 West Michigan Avenue 
 Parcel #53-281-021-00 
Summary 
Subsequent to approval of a 425 Conditional Land Transfer by the Marshall Township 
Board and Marshall City Council, the Marshall Area Economic Development Alliance 
(MAEDA), owner of 13700 West Michigan Avenue (Parcel #53-281-021-00), has 
submitted a Rezoning Application for said property to Industrial and Manufacturing 
Complex (I-3) Zoning District, pursuant to M.C.L. 125.3401.  
 
Please note, the only issue that the Joint Planning Commission is considering at this time 
is the rezoning request.  If the Rezoning request is approved, the applicant would then 
file a site plan application and building/ trades permits to construct a new facility, 
parking lots, driveways, and associated on-site utility improvements; site development 
review and determinations would be addressed through their own processes at a later 
date. 
 
Background 
This parcel was recently transferred to the City of Marshall (“City”) under PA 425 
Conditional Land Transfer from Marshall Township (“Township”) in the last three 
months. The bulk of the parcel subject to this rezoning application has been zoned 
“Industrial” since the 1960’s, under the Township’s jurisdiction. After several decades of 
planning by Marshall Township for the development of this large industrial area, the 
Township took action to update their Master Plan and Future Land Use map to reflect 
this intent for the purposes of attracting prospective industrial businesses. 
 
Prior to commencing the PA 425 land transfer, the City determined that a new zoning 
district was necessary to address anticipated issues or concerns that could potentially 
arise from development in this area of the township.  A meeting was held in April 2022 
with the City Planning Commission and members of the Township Planning Commission 
to discuss issues of joint interest relative to the development of a new ordinance.  One 
item that the township requested was to prohibit cannabis uses in areas developed 

Page 5 of 33



Application # RZ23-01 
13700 West Michigan Avenue 

2 
 

under this ordinance. (The City’s current ordinance allows cannabis in its two current 
Industrial zoning districts.) 
 
After this meeting, City staff worked with a planning consultant, Progressive AE, to 
develop a new zoning district that would govern the development of large industrial sites 
to be transferred to the City from the Township.  After several months of Planning 
Commission meetings and public hearings, the City Council approved a new I-3 zoning 
ordinance on January 18, 2023.  
 
Starting in January of 2023 and continuing through April 2023, the City and Township 
approved several PA 425 agreements which transferred authority over acreage intended 
for industrial development from the Township to the City.  Subsequently, MAEDA 
requested these parcels to be combined into one parcel and then split to meet any 
proposed development’s needs.  Once the lots were combined, a split was requested of 
approximately 741 acres for a proposed development. 
 
With the creation of this new parcel, a request was submitted by MAEDA to rezone the 
property to Industrial and Manufacturing Complex (I-3).  City staff then set a date for the 
Joint Planning Commission to meet and consider this request.  
 
Property/Neighborhood Description 
The subject site, 13700 Michigan Avenue, is located south of West Michigan Avenue 
between 13 mile and 15 mile roads.  The site subject to this rezoning application is 
identified in the map below: 

 

Page 6 of 33



Application # RZ23-01 
13700 West Michigan Avenue 

3 
 

The new 741-acre parcel proposed for rezoning is comprised of relatively flat farmland 
and contains nine (9) houses, for which demolition permits have been issued.    Other 
structures on the site are either being used by the development team, contemplated for 
other uses, or may be demolished at a later date.   The site abuts another parcel of land,  
owned by the petitioner, to be used as a buffer from surrounding parcels and public 
rights-of-way, and to address storm water management. 
 
Development in the surrounding area could be characterized as semi-rural, with a 
majority of the parcels housing single family residences or farm property.  There are 
small neighborhoods to the northwest and east of the site with a commercial area to the 
north and east.  South of the site is a MDOT/Norfolk Southern rail line and the 
Kalamazoo River.  West of the site is the unincorporated Village of Ceresco. 
 
Neighborhood Zoning 
All of the site’s existing zoning is currently based on the Marshall Township Zoning 
Ordinance.  As noted earlier, the bulk of the parcel has been zoned for Industrial 
development since the 1960’s. The following Marshall Township zoning.  
 
The 2018 Township Zoning Map (below), shows that the site considered for rezoning 
was split between Industrial (IP) and Agricultural (AR).  Parcels to the immediate east, 
west, and north of the parcel were zoned Agricultural (AR).  The southern boundary of 
the site is bordered by an MDOT owned rail line.  Immediately to the south, there are 
several parcels zoned Open Space Waterbody (OC).  There were six (6) parcels zoned 
Community Service Commercial (CS) and thirteen (13) zoned Highway Service 
Commercial (HS) in the immediate area.   
 
February 22, 2018, Township Zoning Map- section covering parcel proposed for 
rezoning. 

 
 

Page 7 of 33



Application # RZ23-01 
13700 West Michigan Avenue 

4 
 

 
 
Marshall Township’s most recently adopted zoning map reflects this site as “PA 425 
Agreement” as it was updated after the Conditional Land Transfer’s approval.   
 
Marshall Township Master Plan 
As required by the Michigan Planning Enabling Act, Marshall Township has adopted and 
maintained a Master Plan to governs land use decisions in the Township.  The current 
Master Plan was adopted on November 21, 2022.  The Master Plan contains goals 
around land use, economic development, public utilities/facilities, housing, and natural 
resources.  The proposed rezoning addresses the following goals in the current Master 
Plan: 
 

Chapter 4 Goal (Economic Development)- Industrial development areas are 
planned and targeted for significant private investment, public infrastructure 
expansion, and job creation in cooperation with the City of Marshall. Additionally, 
smaller-scale businesses are supported along Michigan Avenue East. 

 
Earlier in the section, the township states that, “recent economic development efforts in 
cooperation with the City of Marshall and the Michigan Economic Development 
Corporation will put the Township and City on the map as a premier site for private 
investment and job creation.”  It is very clear that the intention of the Township was to 
develop this site for the type of development proposed in this rezoning. 
 

Chapter 5 (Public Services, etc.) Goal- The Township shall strive to maintain 
excellent public facilities, services, and infrastructure to serve the needs of its 
residents and business.  As part of this goal, the township has adopted the 
following principles: Plan for new connecting roadways through planned industrial 
areas; and cooperatively plan areas for 425 Agreements with the City of Marshall 
and coordinate development areas with the Future Land Use Plan. 
 
Chapter 6 Goal (Land Use)- Future land use within the Township shall be 
developed in a manner that is sensitive to agricultural areas, existing 
neighborhoods, and natural resources, and the Future Land Use Plan will direct 
higher-density and intensity uses to areas planned for utility and infrastructure 
expansion or established urban areas. 

Page 8 of 33



Application # RZ23-01 
13700 West Michigan Avenue 

5 
 

 
Within this section, the township references an Urban Growth Boundary where more 
intensive, dense growth will be targeted.  This is described in the following section (page 
27) from the chapter: “Inside the boundary, commercial and industrial developments and 
higher residential densities are considered to be more appropriate and feasible in these 
areas from an environmental, development, and utility feasibility perspective.” 
 
A major part of the Master Plan is the adoption of a Future Land Use map.  The section 
of the current Future Land Use Plan that covers the proposed rezoning is as follows: 
  
2022 Township Future Land Use Plan- section covering parcel proposed for rezoning. 

 
 
The Future Land Use map shows that the entire area covered by the rezoning is included 
in the Heavy Industrial classification.  Previous Future Land Use maps adopted in prior 
Master Plans also contain a future industrial land use designation. 
 
City of Marshall Master Plan 
As required by the Michigan Planning Enabling Act, the City of Marshall has adopted and 
maintained a Master Plan to govern land use decisions in the city.  The current Master 
Plan was adopted on June 10, 2015, and reviewed in 2020 with confirmation by the 
Planning Commission that it was still relevant.  As in the Township’s Master Plan, there 
are goals that support the type of development that is being proposed.  The following 
goals support the type of development that is proposed at this site: 
 

• Goal 5: Ensure the long term strength of the city’s employment base.   
• Goal 6: Strengthen cooperation and coordination with neighboring townships and 

community partners to ensure the long term success of the City, its neighbors, and 
institutions. 

 
These goals encourage collaboration with Marshall Township to encourage economic 
development in areas targeted for development through the use of PA 425 agreements.  

Page 9 of 33



Application # RZ23-01 
13700 West Michigan Avenue 

6 
 

Specific language encourages the use of the Joint Planning Commission to make land use 
decisions.   
 
With both entities adopting language surrounding collaboration in land use decisions and 
economic development activities, it is evident that both communities have jointly 
strategized and planned for this type of development.   
 
Applicable Ordinance Provisions 
 
City of Marshall Zoning Ordinance 
Pursuant to Section 3.6 of the City Zoning Ordinance, properties transferred from 
another governmental unit are assigned a zoning classification to whatever district most 
closely conforms with the previous zoning designation; this ordinance also allows for 
City Council to adopt a new zoning map by holding a public hearing and upon receiving a 
recommendation from the Planning Commission.  
 
The Michigan Planning and Zoning Enabling Acts, case law, and local ordinance outline 
the criteria by which a rezoning request is reviewed, and a determination made. In 
making a recommendation to City Council on the zoning classification(s) for such land 
areas, the Planning Commission shall consider any previous township or county zoning 
classifications that existed for the land prior to the extension of City boundaries, the 
pattern of land uses in the area, adopted City Master Plan recommendations, and 
planned future land use designations for the land area or adjacent areas within the City. 
 
Another area of the City Zoning ordinance that addresses issues in the proposed 
rezoning is that the requested zoning district (I-3) was developed to address issues in this 
area of Marshall Township and the type of development that would be developed from 
this proposed rezoning.  The I-3 purpose, and intent is as follows:  
 
The proposed rezoning is also intended to address issues that cannot be remedied or 
accommodated by Marshall Township in a manner that would advance the Township’s 
Future Land Use vision.  In this case, it is the need for significant public infrastructure to 
facilitate site development.   The Purpose, and Intent of the Industrial and Manufacturing 
Complex (I-3) zoning district is to:  
"Provide for the siting of larger scale manufacturing, processing, and production operations 
which may require extensive access to transportation facilities and community utilities and 
may include multiple supporting ancillary services such as storage, daycare, cafeteria, gym, or 
other supportive amenities. This district may be established in areas that are; 

i.  comprised of an extensive amount of contiguous land area that is greater than two 
hundred (200) acres; 

ii.  served by major highways, rail or air service, or secondary road improved to state 
standards; 

iii.  served by public water and sewer, and 
iv.  clearly suitable for intended uses with regard to physical characteristics and 

relationship to surrounding development.” 

Page 10 of 33



Application # RZ23-01 
13700 West Michigan Avenue 

7 
 

 
 
The site under consideration for rezoning meets these standards as it is greater than 200 
acres, it is served by a state trunkline with direct access to two expressways, and will be 
served by public water and sewer.  
 
As stated earlier, the I-3 District was developed to limit uses that were not desirable in 
this highly visible property in Marshall Township.  Uses allowed in the I-1 and I-2 zoning 
districts, such as cannabis and adult and sexually oriented businesses would not be 
appropriate in an area designated for major manufacturing facilities. 
 
Rezoning Process, Standards 
The following criteria are to be used as a guide in determining whether the rezoning 
should be approved: 
 
A. The proposed zoning district is more appropriate than any other zoning district, or 

more appropriate than adding the desired use as a special land use in the existing 
zoning district. 

 
B. The property cannot be reasonably used as zoned. 
 
C. The proposed zone change is supported by and consistent with the goals, policies, 

and future land use map of the adopted City Master Plan. If conditions have changed 
since the plan was adopted, as determined by the Planning Commission, the 
consistency with recent development trends in the area shall be considered. 

 
D. The proposed zone change is compatible with the established land use pattern, 

surrounding uses, and surrounding zoning in terms of land suitability, impacts on the 
environment, density, nature of use, traffic impacts, aesthetics, infrastructure, and 
potential influence on property values, and is consistent with the needs of the 
community. 

 
E. All the potential uses allowed in the proposed zoning district are compatible with the 

site’s physical, geological, hydrological, and other environmental features. 
  
F. The change would not severely impact traffic, public facilities, utilities, and the 

natural characteristics of the area, or significantly change population density, and 
would not compromise the health, safety, and welfare of the city. 

  
G. The rezoning would constitute and create an isolated and unplanned district contrary 

to the City Master Plan which may grant a special privilege to one landowner not 
available to others. 

  

Page 11 of 33



Application # RZ23-01 
13700 West Michigan Avenue 

8 
 

H. The change of present district boundaries is consistent in relation to existing uses, 
and construction on the site will be able to meet the dimensional regulations for the 
proposed zoning district listed in the schedule of regulations. 

 
I. There was a mistake in the original zoning classification, or a change of conditions in 

the area supporting the proposed rezoning. 
 
J. Adequate sites are neither properly zoned nor available elsewhere to accommodate 

the proposed uses permitted in the requested zoning district. 
 
Public Hearing and Notice Requirements 
As required by the Zoning Enabling Act of 2006, as amended, a public hearing notice was 
published in the Marshall Advisor and Chronicle on Saturday, April 8, 2023.  Notices of 
the public hearing were also sent by regular mail to the owners/ occupants of properties 
located within 300’ of the subject parcel. Fifty parcels were identified within 300’ of the 
parcel, with 17 notices sent out due to individuals/organizations owning and occupying 
multiple parcels. To date, the city has not received any comments from individuals in this 
area.  Any written comments received before the end of day Tuesday, April 24, will be 
forwarded to the JPC members via email.  Any written comments received after the 
close of business on April 24, will be presented at the meeting on April 25, 2023. 
 
Recommendation 
Staff recommends in support of the requested rezoning/zoning designation of Industrial 
and Manufacturing Complex (I-3) and makes the findings listed below, as a result of the 
review and analysis of the rezoning application; analysis of the neighboring land uses and 
existing conditions; and also finds the project consistent with the objectives of City and 
Township Master Plans and intent of the City and Township Zoning Ordinances. 
 
Findings 
A. The proposed zoning district is more appropriate than any other zoning district, or 

more appropriate than adding the desired use as a special land use in the existing 
zoning district. 

 
This site has been zoned industrial in the township for many years, in anticipation of 
industrial development. This property is within the urban growth boundary established by 
the Township Master Plan/Future Land Use map, again demonstrating the intent to 
provide for industrial development. 
 
The new zoning district was developed in accordance with Township Master Plan and 
future land use map, ensuring land uses that both the City and Township found potentially 
unsuitable (i.e., marihuana, adult sexually oriented businesses), would not be allowed.  

 
 
 
 

Page 12 of 33



Application # RZ23-01 
13700 West Michigan Avenue 

9 
 

B. The property cannot be reasonably used as zoned. 
 

The property was zoned industrial in the township, but without public utilities, could not 
be reasonably used for industrial purposes. A PA 425 is required to transfer the property 
to the City, which will extend public services and allow the property to be used as it has 
been zoned for several decades.  
 
With a rezoning, the City Zoning Ordinance allows property to transfer to the city with the 
underlying township zoning district intact, which in this case is industrial. The ordinance 
also provides an opportunity for the City Council to adopt a new map which requires a 
public hearing before the Joint Planning Commission and City Council.  
 
In order to limit the nature of future end uses to those acceptable to the Township, a new 
district was created to target uses included in the I-3 Zoning District.  

 
C. The proposed zone change is supported by and consistent with the goals, policies, 

and future land use map of the adopted City Master Plan. If conditions have 
changed since the plan was adopted, as determined by the Planning Commission, 
the consistency with recent development trends in the area shall be considered. 

 
As identified earlier, the City Master Plan encourages collaboration with the Township 
(Goal #6) in encouraging development through the use of PA 425 agreements and in 
collaboration through the Joint Planning Commission.  In addition, another goal (Goal #5) 
seeks to ensure the long term strength of the city’s employment base.   
 
The proposed zoning is consistent with the goals, policies, and future land use map 
adopted in the Township Master Plan.  As identified earlier in this report, the following 
goals support the proposed rezoning: 
 

o Economic Development- Industrial development areas are planned and targeted 
for significant private investment, public infrastructure expansion, and job creation 
in cooperation with the City of Marshall 

o Public Utilities- Cooperatively plan areas for 425 Agreements with the City of 
Marshall and coordinate development areas with the Future Land Use Plan. 

o Land Use-Future Land Use Plan will direct higher-density and intensity uses to 
areas planned for utility and infrastructure expansion or established urban areas. 

 
These goals listed in both the Township’s and City’s master plan clearly support the 
rezoning and are reinforced by decades old past and present Future Land Use maps that 
have identified this area for industrial uses.  
 
While this site is not specifically listed on the City of Marshall Future Land Use map, it is a 
result of changing conditions that allowed for the attraction of a top tier automaker to the 
area. The need for public utilities had prompted the transfer from Township to City, which 
is why the future land use for this site is not indicated on the City’s Future Land Use Map.    

Page 13 of 33



Application # RZ23-01 
13700 West Michigan Avenue 

10 
 

D. The proposed zone change is compatible with the established land use pattern, 
surrounding uses, and surrounding zoning in terms of land suitability, impacts on the 
environment, density, nature of use, traffic impacts, aesthetics, infrastructure, and 
potential influence on property values, and is consistent with the needs of the 
community. 

 
The proposed zoning is consistent with the current Township Zoning Ordinance and the 
Future Land Use map.  The bulk of the property is used as agriculture including large scale 
commercial farms with scattered residential uses. Due to the size of the development and 
land acquisition efforts by MAEDA, it is expected that there will be a significant distance 
between any proposed buildings and any remaining homes. Additionally, due to 
landscaping, buffering, and stormwater management requirements, the industrial 
development will have a significant setback from any road rights-of-ways with green space 
to accommodate these elements. While the development of farmland and other natural 
spaces will be viewed as a negative to many in the area, the proposed zoning district 
requires any development to add buffering to address the loss of agrarian character and 
provide a visual buffer that respects the natural environment where viewed from public 
rights of way and residential properties.  The project will also maintain the land between 
the railroad and Kalamazoo River leaving a highly attractive natural area that will provide 
additional buffering for those that use the river and properties to the south of the river. 
 
While some concern has been expressed around impacts on the environment, State, local, 
and regional organizations are required to monitor these impacts and address any 
potential issues.  State and local permitting efforts are already underway, and the 
proposed development will meet these standards which have been developed to protect 
the surrounding environment.  Engineering controls for soil erosion and sedimentation and 
stormwater management are required to protect the natural environment. 
 
The site is located directly off a state trunkline.  Two expressway interchanges are in close 
proximity and provide a high level of capacity and access for freight and heavy trucks.   
Traffic studies and design plans will be developed to ensure local traffic will be maintained 
at a high level of service.  Resources to address any needed improvements identified 
through the studies have been committed by the State of Michigan and will be developed 
as necessary. 
 
The site has been identified for development due to its location along Michigan Avenue 
and the distance from the City of Marshall’s infrastructure.  The city is working with the 
State of Michigan and other regional partners to develop a comprehensive infrastructure 
approach to serve the site which will benefit the entire region.  This plan will increase the 
benefits to public safety and the reliability of public utilities in the region. 
 
The proposed project is consistent with the community’s needs as identified in the 
respective Township and City Master Plans.  Both plans identify economic development 
and the attraction of jobs to the community as a priority.   

  

Page 14 of 33



Application # RZ23-01 
13700 West Michigan Avenue 

11 
 

E. All the potential uses allowed in the proposed zoning district are compatible with 
the site’s physical, geological, hydrological, and other environmental features. 

 
 Since 2019, the Calhoun County Community Development Department has completed 

master planning on the proposed site in order to be ready for development.  During that 
time, consultants that are experts in their fields were contracted to provide reports on the 
potential land use/ site development issues identified in this specific rezoning criteria.  The 
following reports were completed and have indicated that the site can support the 
proposed development: 

• Archeological Survey 
• Geodynamic Testing & Evaluation Report 
• Kalamazoo River Sample Results 
• Phase I Environmental Site Assessment Report 
• Protected Species Habitat Assessment 
• Supplemental Preliminary Geotechnical Evaluation Report 
• Temporary Construction Stormwater Management Narrative 
• Traffic Impact Study & Preliminary Project Scoping Report 
• Vibration Monitoring & Analysis Report 
• Wetland Delineation Report 

In addition, permits have been issued by the County Drain Commission and County Road 
Department in relation to temporary stormwater management and soil erosion.  
Additional permitting with state and local agencies will be underway as a site plan is fully 
developed and submitted to the City, which will address permanent stormwater 
management amongst other issues.  

F. The change would not severely impact traffic, public facilities, utilities, and the 
natural characteristics of the area, or significantly change population density, and 
would not compromise the health, safety, and welfare of the city. 

 
 While the proposed rezoning could impact the level of traffic around the site and in the 

community, its proximate location on a state trunkline and in the vicinity of two 
expressway interchanges already provides a high level of capacity and access. Traffic 
studies and design plans will be developed to ensure local traffic will be maintained at a 
high level of service.  Resources to address these needed improvements have been 
committed by the State of Michigan and will be developed as necessary. 

 
 The city does not anticipate major impact to its public facilities to serve the proposed 

development.  The city will negotiate a public services agreement with the development to 
cover the increased cost of serving the site.  Other public facilities (e.g., Marshall District 
Library and Marshall Public Schools) will receive additional resources from the State of 
Michigan due to the proposed Renaissance Zone tax exemption.  

 

Page 15 of 33

https://choosemarshall.com/wp-content/uploads/2023/04/Archeological-Survey.pdf
https://choosemarshall.com/wp-content/uploads/2023/04/Geodynamic-Testing-and-Evaluation-Report.pdf
https://choosemarshall.com/wp-content/uploads/2023/04/Kalamazoo-River-Sample-Results.pdf
https://choosemarshall.com/wp-content/uploads/2023/04/Phase-I-Environmental-Site-Assessment-Report.pdf
https://choosemarshall.com/wp-content/uploads/2023/04/Protected-Species-Habitat-Assessment.pdf
https://choosemarshall.com/wp-content/uploads/2023/04/Supplemental-Preliminary-Geotechnical-Evaluation-Report.pdf
https://choosemarshall.com/wp-content/uploads/2023/04/Temporary-Construction-Stormwater-Management-Narrative.pdf
https://choosemarshall.com/wp-content/uploads/2023/04/Traffic-Impact-Study-and-Preliminary-Project-Scoping-Report.pdf
https://choosemarshall.com/wp-content/uploads/2023/04/Vibration-Monitoring-and-Analysis-Report.pdf
https://choosemarshall.com/wp-content/uploads/2023/04/Wetland-Delineation-Report.pdf


Application # RZ23-01 
13700 West Michigan Avenue 

12 
 

 The proposed development will require the extension of public utilities to serve the site.  
The City of Marshall will be providing FiberNet service, sanitary sewer, and potable water.  
The proposed development will be a utility customer of the City of Marshall.  The City is 
partnering with other local units of government to supplement the City’s water supply 
with a wholesale water purchase agreement with the City of Battle Creek. This will allow 
increased water reliability and provide additional capacity to the site.  The City also 
expects increased public safety benefits will also be realized through this interconnect.   

 
 There will be a change to the natural characteristics of the site as a large manufacturing 

building will be built on the site of former farmland.  However, required greenbelt buffering 
will attempt to improve the viewshed of surrounding properties and the proposed 
conservation easement on the property south of the railroad tracks will protect major 
natural characteristics.   

 
Studies completed by third parties indicate that this development expects to attract 
employees from surrounding counties.  The city expects to see additional development 
from people interested in moving to the community and is already working to add various 
housing options.  However, we do not expect to capture every employee and their 
respective families.  Employees will commute from surrounding cities (Battle Creek, 
Kalamazoo, Jackson, Coldwater, etc.) and rural areas in the surrounding counties. 

 
 The proposed development is required to meet health and safety standards of several 

state and federal agencies.  This site will be monitored by these agencies to protect the 
health of the surrounding community and natural resources.   

 
 As described through each of the subject areas above, the City does not believe that the 

proposed development will threaten the health, safety, and welfare of the community. 
 
G. The rezoning would constitute and create an isolated and unplanned district 

contrary to the City Master Plan which may grant a special privilege to one 
landowner not available to others. 

  
 The rezoning is not contrary to the Township Master Plan and was in fact planned over 

several decades as shown in their current and past Master Plans.  As stated earlier, there 
have been changes in the conditions in the area around the need for public services, which 
required the transfer to the City, which was anticipated in the City Master Plan.   

 
H. The change of present district boundaries is consistent in relation to existing uses, 

and construction on the site will be able to meet the dimensional regulations for the 
proposed zoning district listed in the schedule of regulations. 

 
As stated, the proposed zoning change is consistent with the surrounding uses as 
identified in the Township Zoning Ordinance and Master Plan.  The redeveloped site would 
be required to meet all zoning requirements for this parcel in this zoning district.  Site 
development standards take into consideration issues such as setbacks, buffering, 

Page 16 of 33



Application # RZ23-01 
13700 West Michigan Avenue 

13 
 

landscaping, stormwater management, and lighting.  Developments complete an 
independent review by a multi-disciplinary development review team to ensure all 
regulations will be met prior to their approval, and inspections will be completed during 
construction to ensure compliance with state and local codes and ordinances. 

 
I. There was a mistake in the original zoning classification, or a change of conditions in 

the area supporting the proposed rezoning. 
 

The Township had consistently zoned the property as an industrial use since the 1960’s.  
As stated in both Master Plans, properties that required connection to public water and 
sewer would be transferred to the City of Marshall through a PA 425 agreement, which 
has now been completed.  The proposed development requires connection to public 
utilities so there has been a change in conditions that support the proposed rezoning. 

 
J. Adequate sites are neither properly zoned nor available elsewhere to accommodate 

the proposed uses permitted in the requested zoning district. 
 

While there are industrially zoned parcels within the City, there are none of sufficient size 
to serve the proposed development.  The land transferred into the city under the recent 
425 agreements are the only properties that meet the size threshold within the city for 
this type of development. 
 

Therefore, based on the above findings and pursuant to Section 7.1-Amendments and 
MCL 125.3101 et seq., staff recommends that the Joint Planning Commission 
recommend to the City Council adoption of the Rezoning Application #RZ23-01 from 
Township Zoning to City Zoning District- Industrial and Manufacturing Complex (I-3).  If 
the Joint Planning Commission agrees with the findings presented by staff, the following 
motion could be used.” 
 
The Joint Planning Commission recommends approval of the proposed rezoning request of 
13700 West Michigan Avenue (Parcel #53-281-021-00) to Industrial and Manufacturing 
Complex (I-3) based on the findings included in the staff report on this matter. 
 
If the Joint Planning Commission finds that the criteria above are not met, and chooses 
to deny the rezoning, statements related to the above criteria justifying how this request 
does not meet the rezoning standards must be made. 
 
Attachments 
The following information is attached and made part of this Staff report: 

• Rezoning Application Form and Material (Application #RZ23-01) 
• Vicinity Map  
• Map of MAEDA Owned Parcels 
• Township Zoning and Future Land Use Maps 

Page 17 of 33



Page 18 of 33



Page 19 of 33



Page 20 of 33



Page 21 of 33



Page 22 of 33



Page 23 of 33



Page 24 of 33



Page 25 of 33



Page 26 of 33



Page 27 of 33



Page 28 of 33



4/21/2023, 11:23 PM EDT 1/1

General Vicinity Map

MAEDA Rezoning
Request

Map Publication:
04/21/2023 11:22 PM

Disclaimer: This map does not
represent a survey or legal
document and is provided on an
"as is" basis. Calhoun County
expresses no warranty for the
information displayed on this map
document.

1km

0.6mi

Page 29 of 33



M
ID

W
E
S
T
E
R
N

C
O
N
S
U
L
T
IN

G
38

15
 P

la
za

 D
riv

e 
 A

nn
 A

rb
or

, M
ic

hi
ga

n 
48

10
8

(7
34

) 9
95

-0
20

0 
• 

w
w

w
.m

id
w

es
te

rn
co

ns
ul

tin
g.

co
m

La
nd

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t •
 L

an
d 

Su
rv

ey
 •

 In
st

itu
tio

na
l •

 M
un

ic
ip

al
W

ire
le

ss
 C

om
m

un
ic

at
io

ns
 •

 T
ra

ns
po

rt
at

io
n 

• 
La

nd
fil

l S
er

vi
ce

s

Page 30 of 33



13 26 5 4

7 8 9 10 11 12

18 17 16 15 14 13

19 20 21 22 23 24

30 29 28 27 26 25

31 32 33 34 35 36

14
 M

ile
 R

d

Ol
d U

S 2
7 N

15
 1/

2 M
ile

 R
d

Peter Pan Ln

Victors Ln

Ol
d U

S 2
7 N

Verona Rd

13
 M

ile
 R

d

Old Verona Rd
Michigan Ave E

C Dr N

Ga
rre

tt W
ay

Homer Rd

Friendship Ln

Ed
en

 St

15 
Mile 

Rd

Centennial Rd

B Dr N

17
 1/

2 M
ile

 R
d

Pierce
St

A Dr N

All
an

ah
 C

hri
sti

ne

Court St

Hickory Hill

15 Mile Rd

Industrial Rd

K Line
Way

Hawthorne Rd

Ke
ss

elw
oo

d
Trl

Michigan Ave

Woodruff Dr

F Dr N

Hubbard
Rd

Alto Relievo Way

He
ath

er 
Dr

G Dr N

Meredith
Trl

15
 M

ile
 R

d

WaterSt

16 1/2 Mile Rd

Bentley Blvd

Preston
Dr

Sam Hill Dr

Squa
w Cree

k R
d

We
st 

Dr

E Dr N

13
 M

ile
 R

d

Division Dr

Burlingame Dr

Allison Dr

OldVerona Rd

Oak RidgeHills

Riv
er

Pa
rk 

Dr
Country Hills

F Dr N

L Dr N

17
 1/

2 M
ile

 R
d

12
 M

ile
 R

d

Walters Dr

L Dr N

16 1/2 Mile Rd

17
 1/

2 M
ile

 R
d

Sunset Hills Dr

Emily Corlett

12
 M

ile
 R

d

14
 M

ile
 R

d

12
 M

ile
 R

d

Tau Dr

14
 M

ile
 R

d

Highfield Rd

J Dr N

Verona Rd

A Dr N

G Dr N

15
 M

ile
 R

d

G Dr N

16 Mile Rd

18
 M

ile
 R

d

H Dr N

L Dr N

17
 M

ile
 R

d

C Dr N

Kristen Dr

Br
oo

k D
r

Kiethan
Way

Ka
the

rin
e T

rl

ÕÉ227

ÕÉ96

§̈¦94

§̈¦69

§̈¦69

§̈¦94

§̈¦94

§̈¦94

§̈¦94

ZONING DISTRICTS
Marshall Township
Calhoun County, Michigan

Zoning
OC - Open Space Waterbody
AB - Agricultural Business
AR - Agricultural
RA - Low Density Residential
RB - Medium Density Residential
MHP - Manufactured Home Park

MF - Multiple Family Residence
CS Community Service Commercial
HS - Highway Service Commercial
LI - Light Industrial
IP - Industrial Park
P.A. 425 Agreement
Additional Setback Corridor

µ
0 0.25 0.5 0.75 1

Miles1 in = 1,000 ft

Interstate
Ramp
Business Route
State Route
County Primary
County Local Hard Surface
County Local Gravel
City/Private

Railroads
Drains
Rivers
Lakes
Sections
City Of Marshall
Municipal BoundariesMap Date: 3/7/2023

Calhoun County GIS
315 W Green St, Marshall MI  49068

Sources: Calhoun County GIS, Marshall Township - 2018

C     O    N     V     I     S          T     O     W     N     S     H     I     P

F     R     E     D     O     N     I     A          T     O     W     N     S     H     I     P

E  
   M

    
 M

    
 E 

    
T  

   T
    

    
  C

    
 H

    
 A 

    
R 

    
T  

   E
    

 R
    

    
  T

    
 O

    
 W

    
 N

    
 S 

    
H 

    
I   

  P

C     I     T     Y

                             O     F

                                           M     A     R     S     H     A     L     L

M     A     R     E     N     G     O          T     O     W     N     S     H     I     P

Kalamazoo River

Kalamazoo River

Rice Creek

Page 31 of 33



Page 32 of 33



Verona Rd

L Dr N

J Dr N

A Dr N

15
 M

ile
 R

d

H Dr N

18
 M

ile
 R

d

14
 M

ile
 R

d

C Dr N

Michigan Ave E

F Dr N

Ol
d U

S 2
7  

N

We
st 

Dr

13
 M

ile
 R

d

Oliver Dr

Homer Rd

17
 M

ile
 R

d

15
 1/

2 M
ile

 R
d

G Dr N

Tau Dr

16 Mile Rd

C Dr N

16
 1/

2 M
ile

 R
d

12
 M

ile
 R

d B Dr N

12
 M

ile
 R

d

G Dr N

14
 M

ile
 R

d

G Dr N

13
 M

ile
 R

d

Verona Rd

16 1/2 Mile Rd
ÕÉ227

ÕÉ96

§̈¦94

§̈¦69

§̈¦69

§̈¦94

§̈¦94

§̈¦94

§̈¦94

12

98

34

7

56

11

29 28

32

24

14

35

2321

13

25

12

33

16

26

20

36

15

34

17

10

22

2730

19

31

18

Marshall Township
Future Land Use

Map Date: 11/21/2022
Calhoun County GIS

315 W Green St, Marshall MI  49068

Sources: State of Michigan, 2019 Marshall Township, Calhoun County GIS, 2022

µ 0 0.5 1 1.5 20.25
Miles

L e eL e e

L e r o yL e r o y

H o m e rH o m e r

C o n v i sC o n v i s

A t h e n sA t h e n s

N e w t o nN e w t o n A l b i o nA l b i o nE c k f o r dE c k f o r d

E m m e t tE m m e t t M a r e n g oM a r e n g o

F r e d o n i aF r e d o n i a

T e k o n s h aT e k o n s h a

C l a r e n c eC l a r e n c eP e n n f i e l dP e n n f i e l d

M a r s h a l lM a r s h a l l

B e d f o r dB e d f o r d

S h e r i d a nS h e r i d a n

C l a r e n d o nC l a r e n d o nB u r l i n g t o nB u r l i n g t o n

B a t t l e  C r e e kB a t t l e  C r e e k

C i t y  o f  M a r s h a l lC i t y  o f  M a r s h a l l
C i t y  o f  A l b i o nC i t y  o f  A l b i o n

C i t y  o f  S p r i n g f i e l dC i t y  o f  S p r i n g f i e l d

Agricultural / Rural Residential
Low Density Residential
Medium Density Residential
High Density Residential
Commercial
Light Industrial
Heavy Industrial
Mixed Use
Open Space / Recreation
425 Agreement

Urban Growth Boundary
Additional Setback Corridor
City Of Marshall
Sections Lines
Lakes
Rivers
Drains

Page 33 of 33


	1) CALL TO ORDER
	2) ROLL CALL
	3) APPROVAL OF AGENDA
	A. Approval of April 25, 2023 JPC Agenda

	4) APPROVAL OF MINUTES
	A. Minutes of October 18, 2022 JPC Meeting
	DRAFT JPC 10.18.22 minutes


	5) PUBLIC COMMENT ON AGENDA ITEMS
	6) PUBLIC HEARINGS & SUBSEQUENT BOARD ACTION
	A. RZ #23-01 13700 West Michigan Avenue Rezoning
	Updated rezoing report
	Rezoning Request
	Survey of Property to be Rezoned for BlueOval project 3-21-23
	Support Letter for Rezoning JPC MAEDA
	General Vicinity
	22367-Land Division East-11x17-11x17
	Marshall+Township+Zoning+-+2023+Update_230309_100630
	Township FLU


	7) OLD BUSINESS
	8) REPORTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS/NEW BUSINESS
	9) PUBLIC COMMENT ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS
	10) BOARD REPORTS
	11) ADJOURNMENT

